
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

December 15, 2022 

On March 12, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-25-20, which enhances 
State and Local Governments’ ability to respond to COVID-19 Pandemic based on 
Guidance for Gatherings issued by the California Department of Public Health. The 
Executive Order specifically allows local legislative bodies to hold meetings via 
teleconference and to make meetings accessible electronically, in order to protect public 
health, which was due to end on September 30, 2021 (Exec. Ord. N-08-21). However, the 
Legislature passed AB 361 which provides local agencies with the ability to meet remotely 
during proclaimed state emergencies under modified Brown Act requirements, similar in 
many ways to the rules and procedures established by the Governor’s previous Executive 
Orders. - In light of this – the December 15, 2022 meeting of the LGVSD Board will be held 
via Zoom electronic meeting*. There will be NO physical location of the meeting. Due to 
the current circumstances, there may be limited opportunity to provide verbal comments 
during the meeting. Persons who wish to address the Board for public comment or on an 
item on the agenda are encouraged, but not required, to submit comments in writing to 
the Board Secretary (tlerch@lgvsd.org ) by 5:00 pm on Wednesday, December 14, 2022. In 
addition, Persons wishing to address the Board verbally must contact the Board Secretary, 
by email tlerch@lgvsd.org ) and provide their Name; Address; Tel. No.; and the Item they 
wish to address by the same date and time deadline for submission of written comments, 
as indicated above.  Please keep in mind that any public comments must be limited to 3 
minutes due to time constraints.  Any written  comments will be distributed to the LGVSD 
Board before the meeting. 
*Prior to the meeting, participants should download the  Zoom app at:
https://zoom.us/download. 

REMOTE CONFERENCING ONLY 
Join Zoom Meeting online at:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85181351060 

OR 
By teleconference at: +16699009128   Meeting ID: Meeting ID: 851 8135 1060 

1

mailto:tlerch@lgvsd.org
mailto:tlerch@lgvsd.org
https://zoom.us/download
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85181351060


December 15, 2022 Page 2 of 4 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

 
MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

NOTE:  Final board action may be taken on any matter appearing on agenda 

 

 
OPEN SESSION: 
 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for December 1, 2022 

B. Approve the Warrant List for December 15, 2022 

C. Approve Board Compensation for November 2022 

D. Approve Yezman attending CASA Regulatory Workgroup Committee Meeting December 8, 2022 

E. Approve Amendment 1 to ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services Contract 

F. Approve Resolution 2022-2292 Remote Meetings 

G. Approve Resolution 2022-2293 Board Policy F-130 Disposal of Surplus Equipment and Property 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through E. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through G. 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

2. Board Policy Review – B-150 Board Memberships and O-10 Fixed Asset Accounting  

Controls  – written 

3. GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting - written 

 

 

4. AUDIT PRESENTATION WITH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Paul Kaymark from Nigro & Nigro will present the LGVSD Audit and Financial Statements to the Board. 

 

 

 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:15 PM 

 

4:30 PM 

 

4:05 PM 

 

4:00 PM 

2

http://www.lgvsd.org/


December 15, 2022 Page 3 of 4 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

5. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ORDINANCE NO. 190 AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 1 – REGULATING
SOLID WASTE, RECYCLABLE AND ORGANIC MATERIALS, AND THE COLLECTION, REMOVAL
AND DISPOSAL THEREOF INCLUDING THE GARBAGE AND REFUSE RATE ADJUSTMENT FOR
2023 

Board to consider the adoption of Ordinance No. 190 - An Ordinance amending Title 4, Chapter 1 of the 
District Ordinance Code and increasing the garbage and refuse rate by 6.17 %.  Representatives of Marin 
Sanitary Service and R3 Consulting Group will be in attendance to discuss the 2023 Rate Application 
Report. 

6. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2022 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2022 Legal Services Ad Hoc committee, 2022 Human Resources Ad Hoc committee,
Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, Marin Special Districts Association, 2022  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee

re: STPURWE, 2022 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,
2022 Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee, 2022 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee, Other Reports

4. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2022 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

2022 Legal Services Ad Hoc Committee, Marin Special Districts,
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc committee, 2022 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

7. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

8. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

9. ADJOURNMENT

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: JANUARY 5 AND JANUARY 12, 2023 

6:10 PM 

5:30 PM

6:15 PM 

6:00 PM 

5:10 PM 

6:20  PM 

3



December 15, 2022 Page 4 of 4 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before December 12, 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held  by Zoom December 15, 2022, at the District Office, located at 101 
Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: December 9, 2022 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 

business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 

Rafael, CA. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting.

AGENDA APPROVED: Crystal J. Yezman, Board Vice-President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

4



 

 
 

 

12/15/2022 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\12152022\ASR for SCADA Support Services Amendment for FY 2022-23 Contract.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors  

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: December 22, 2022 

Re: Approve Amendment 1 to ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services 
Contract for July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023  

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information_______ Other______  

Standard Contract:    Yes__ X ___   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve contract amendment 1 to ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services 
Agreement for July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 to cover costs associated with additional scope of 
work items. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Board approved the ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services Contract on May 5, 2022. 
The scope of work for this contract was for an estimated amount of routine support required to 
maintain the District’s automated monitoring and control systems used at the treatment plant and 
in the collections system for a 12-month period. 
 
Since Board approval, District staff have required a greater than anticipated amount of ArcSine 
Engineering staff time for unforeseen work items which are listed in the amendment 1 proposal 
included with this summary report. This additional work has resulted in a funding gap that would 
preclude continued support to the end of the contract term.  
 
To ensure continued support, staff requested ArcSine Engineering provide a scope and fee 
estimate for the unanticipated tasks completed to date. Staff believe that with costs covered by 
amendment 1, there will be adequate funding for support services to the end of the fiscal year. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
The board approved ArcSine Engineering’s support services in FY 2022-23 for an estimated 
scope of work in the amount of $63,318 at the May 5, 2022, Meeting. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
$21,377 for FY 22-23 
 
 

Item Number______2E________ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

28

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


SCOPE OF WORK 

SCADA ON-CALL SUPPORT AMENDMENT 1 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

   

ArcSine Project No.  1663.10/T2  November 30, 2022 

P:\1663.10 LGVSD SCADA On-Call Support 2022-2023\Contract\On Call Support  2022 - 2023 Amendment 1.docx 

INTRODUCTION 

This Scope of Work covers on-call professional services to be provided by ArcSine Engineering 

(Consultant) for ongoing support of Plant Control Systems. 

This Scope constitutes an addition to the base scope dated April 4, 2022.  The goal of the base 

scope was to provide general support, plus a specific HMI upgrade defined in Base Scope Task 

3.  Work has been underway and funded by the base scope, but that work consists of activities 

beyond general support.  This Amendment is needed to continue to provide support to the 

District, as was envisioned for the base scope.  

The following work items comprise work above and beyond what was anticipated in the base 

scope. 

PUMP STATION EVALUATION SUPPORT 

 

As directed by the District, ArcSine supported HAZEN AND SAWYER developing a hydraulic 

model for their collection system.  The required data had previously been archived in a flat file 

state. 

 

• Temporarily importing data from 2018 to present. 

• Provide data queries in 15-minute increments for the requested data sets. 

• Provide data queries in 1-minute increments for the requested data sets. 

 

DIGESTER MCC IMPROVEMENTS 

 

• Attend meetings with District staff and HAZEN AND SAWYER. 

• Coordinate with design staff for SCADA integration of additional process instrumentation.  

• Verify available I/0 at the Marinwood PLC. 

• Submitted spare I/O list for Marinwood Pump Station. 

• Provide Design Engineers with LGVSD SCADA Standards. 

CYBER SECURITY 

As directed by the District, ArcSine supported West Yost and attended various meetings to 

answer SCADA-related questions in support of the project. 

• Attended “Cyber Security Awareness Scheduling” Workshop 

• Attended “Day Without SCADA” Kickoff Meeting 

• Attended “Cyber Security Awareness” Workshop 1 

  

29



 
  

ArcSine Engineering  Page 2 of 2 
P:\1663.10 LGVSD SCADA On-Call Support 2022-2023\Contract\On Call Support  2022 - 2023 Amendment 1.docx 

• Provided District’s Consulting Engineers with LGVSD SCADA documentation 

• Attended “Day Without SCADA” Workshop 

BIO WHEEL PROGRAMMING SUPPORT 

As directed by the District, ArcSine has supported Bio Wheel investigations.  

• Provided sample HMI screens 

• Provided sample PLC code 

• Provided Multiple Bio Wheel Data Queries 

• Bio Wheel programming to limit speed to 75% 

• Provided Engineering Support to aide in Troubleshooting  

BIO WHEEL ENERGY SUPPORT 

As directed by the District, ArcSine has supported Bio Wheel investigations.  

• Provide data queries for Bio Wheel Speed 

• Provide data queries for Bio Wheel Power Consumption 

• Provide data queries for dissolved oxygen 

 

 

30



ArcSine Project No. 1663.10/T2 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

2022 - 2023 SCADA Support Amendment 1

Fee Estimate

12/1/2022

Review

Senior 

Programmer

Design 

Engineer Programmer Technician Drafting Clerical

$224 $200 $160 $148 $105 $117 $94

Task 1 – PUMP STATION EVALUATION SUPPORT

A. Temporally importing data from 2018 to present 10

B. Provide data queries in 15- minute increments for the requested data sets 8

C.  Provide data queries in 1-minute increments for the requested data sets. 22

Subtotal - Hours 0 0 0 40 0 0 0

Subtotal  - Fee -$                 -$                     -$                 5,920$             -$                 -$               -$               -$                   

Task Subtotal 5,920$         

Task 2 - DIGESTER MCC IMPROVEMENTS

A. Attend meetings with District Staff and HAZEN AND SAWYER. 2 4.5

B. Coordinate with design staff for SCADA integration of additional process instrumentation. 4

C. Verify available I/0 at the Marinwood PLC. 3.5

D. Submitted spare I/O list for Marinwood Pump Station. 2.5

E. Provide Design Engineers with LGVSD SCADA Standards.

Subtotal - Hours 0 0 2 14.5 0 0 0

Subtotal  - Fee -$                 -$                     320$            2,146$             -$                 -$               -$               -$                   

Task Subtotal 2,466$         

Task 3 - CYBER SECURITY

A.  Attended “Cyber Security Awareness Scheduling” Workshop 1 2

B. Attended “Day Without SCADA” Kickoff Meeting 3

C. Attended “Cyber Security Awareness” Workshop 1 3

D. Provided District’s Consulting Engineers with LGVSD SCADA documentation 4

E. Attended “Day Without SCADA” Workshop 14 1200

Subtotal - Hours 1 0 0 26 0 0 0

Subtotal  - Fee 224$            -$                     -$                 3,848$             -$                 -$               -$               1,200$           

Task Subtotal 5,272$         

Task 4 - Bio Wheel Programming Support

A. Provided sample HMI screens 2

B. Provided  PLC code (Other Process areas were removed from code submitted) 4

C. Provided Multiple Bio Wheel Data Queries 8

D. Bio wheel programming to limit speed to 75% 2

E. Provided Engineering Support to aide in Troubleshooting 2 12

Subtotal - Hours 2 0 0 28 0 0 0

Subtotal  - Fee 448$            -$                     -$                 4,144$             -$                 -$               -$               -$                   

Task Subtotal 4,592$         

Task 5 - Bio Wheel Energy Support

A. Provide data queries for Bio Wheel Speed 2

B. Provide data queries for Bio Wheel Power Consumption 4

ExpensesDescription

P:\1663.10 LGVSD SCADA On-Call Support 2022-2023\Contract\On Call Support  Estimate 2022 - 2023 Amend 1.xlsx Page 1 of 231



ArcSine Project No. 1663.10/T2 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

2022 - 2023 SCADA Support Amendment 1

Fee Estimate

12/1/2022

Review

Senior 

Programmer

Design 

Engineer Programmer Technician Drafting Clerical

$224 $200 $160 $148 $105 $117 $94 ExpensesDescription

C. Provide data queries for dissolved oxygen 2

Subtotal - Hours 0 0 0 8 0 0 0

Subtotal  - Fee -$                 -$                     -$                 1,184$             -$                 -$               -$               -$                   

Task Subtotal 1,184$         

Subtotal 19,434$       

10% contingency 1,943$         

Total 21,377$       

P:\1663.10 LGVSD SCADA On-Call Support 2022-2023\Contract\On Call Support  Estimate 2022 - 2023 Amend 1.xlsx Page 2 of 232



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

 
 

 

12/15/2022 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



 

 
 

 

12/15/22 
 

Audit Presentation with Financial Statements 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

X Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

53



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\12152022\MSS Rate 2023\ASR Garbage Rate 2023 Ord and Hearing.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2022 

Re: Refuse Rate Adjustment for 2023 

Item Type:   Consent   Action      X  Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
1. Conduct a public hearing to allow for discussion and input from the public concerning the 

proposed refuse rate increase of 6.17%. 

2. Adopt Ordinance No. 190 Amending Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District Code establishing the maximum rates collected by Marin Sanitary Service for Solid 
Waste Services, to be effective January 1, 2023, in the unincorporated areas of the Las 
Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) entered into a Franchise Agreement 
(“Agreement”) with Marin Sanitary Service (“MSS”) to provide for the collection, removal and 
delivery for Disposal, Recycling or processing of Solid Waste collected and accumulated within 
the unincorporated areas of the District. As part of an amendment to the agreement entered into 
between both parties, a simplified and streamlined annual rate setting methodology to establish 
stable and predictable rates, and a firm basis for rate control in future years, was established. 
 
The following jurisdictions within Marin have similar agreements with MSS and work together to 
share information and reduce costs: the City of San Rafael, City of Larkspur, the Towns of Ross, 
San Anselmo, and Fairfax, the County of Marin, and the District. This Marin franchisors’ group 
meets throughout the year to collaborate on oversight of MSS’s operations and works together to 
conduct a single annual rate review analysis rather than each jurisdiction having to conduct and 
pay for a separate review.  
 
DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC HEARING 
In accordance with the Agreement, MSS submitted an application for rate review, requesting an 
increase in service charges to be effective January 1, 2023. The District retained R3 Consulting 
Group, Inc. (“R3”) as an independent consultant on behalf of the Franchisors’ group and the 
District, and R3 reviewed the rate application in accordance with the rate-setting methodology set 
forth in the Agreement. The review yielded a calculated rate adjustment of 6.17%. R3’s Review of 
Marin Sanitary Service’s 2023 Rate Application (Attachment A) was presented to the Board of 
Directors on November 17, 2022.  
 
 

Item Number__________5____ 

GM Review   __________CP____ 

 

54

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\12152022\MSS Rate 2023\ASR Garbage Rate 2023 Ord and Hearing.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
The maximum rate increase applies to all residential, commercial, and multi-family dwellings and 
incorporated into Appendix, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Schedule of Rates, incorporated 
into Ordinance No. 190 (Attachment B) amending Title 4, Chapter 1 of the District Code. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Agreement, as well as state law, the District posted 
notice of the December 15, 2022 public hearing in the three designated places in the District, as 
well as on the District website, advising that this public hearing to consider the requested increase 
would be held on December 15, 2022 and that any person interested, including all persons 
owning property within the District, was invited to appear and be heard on the matters set forth in 
the public hearing notice. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Ordinance 188 – Refuse rates for 2022 adopted December 16, 2021. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
Rates are paid directly by MSS’s customers within the unincorporated areas of the District. 
 
There is no impact to the 2022-23 Budget. The budget anticipated a 4.78% increase in franchise 
related expenses and offsetting franchise related revenue. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment A Review of Marin Sanitary Service’s 2023 Rate Application by R3 
 
Attachment B Ordinance 190 Amending Title 4, Chapter 1 of the District Code, Regulating 

Garbage, Rubbish, Waste Matter and Refuse, and the Collection, Removal and 
Disposal Thereof, including Schedule of Rates effective January 1, 2023. 

55



FINAL REPORT 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Submitted electronically on October 22, 2020 

submitted electronically: November 5, 2022 

Review of Marin Sanitary Services’ 

2023 Rate Application 

ATTACHMENT A

56



 

450 14th Street, Suite 350, Oakland, CA 94612    |    p  916.782.7821    |    f  916.782.7824    |    www.r3cgi.com  

November 5, 2022 
 
Dale McDonald 
Administrative Services Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 

submitted vía email: dmcdonald@lgvsd.org  
 

SUBJECT: Final Report – Review of Marin Sanitary Service’s 2023 Rate Application 
 

Dear Mr. McDonald, 

 

R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) is pleased to submit this report detailing the results of our review of 

Marin Sanitary Service’s (MSS’s) 2023 rate application for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

(LGVSD). 

 

This review was conducted pursuant to R3’s engagement with the seven agencies (Agencies) served 

by MSS, including the City of San Rafael, City of Larkspur, County of Marin, Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District, Town of Ross, Town of Fairfax, and the Town of San Anselmo.  

 

This report summarizes results from our review of MSS’s 2023 indexed rate application per the 

streamlined rate setting methodology established in 2019. The methodology is described in the 

amended Exhibit B to the Franchise Agreement that the District holds with MSS. 

*               *               *               *               * 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the District. Should you have any questions regarding 

this report or need any additional information, please do not hesitate to reach out directly.  

 

Sincerely,  

Jim Howison | Sr. Managing Consultant  

R3 Consulting Group, Inc.    

925.768.7244 | jhowison@r3cgi.com 

57

http://www.r3cgi.com/
mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


1. FINDINGS 

 District | Review of MSS’s 2023 Rate Application        Page 1 of 4 

Executive Summary 

On August 31, 2022, MSS submitted its application for an increase to its solid waste rates, to be effective 
January 1, 2023. This is an indexed year rate adjustment, which primarily projects compensation due to 
MSS based on the applicable water-sewer-trash CPI Index (WST). Per Exhibit B, the rate adjustment is 
subject to a 2.5% minimum and a 5% maximum rate cap for MSS’ operations. Based on our review of the 
rate application, R3 concurs with MSS’s calculated 2023 rate revenue requirement of $3,393,112, which 
is $197,296 higher than the 2022 rate revenue requirement of $3,195,816, inclusive of projected MSS 
rate revenues needed to implement SB 1383. The corresponding adjustment to the District’s solid waste 
rates for 2023 is 6.17%, based on a January 1, 2023 effective date.  
 

Table 1: 2023 Rate Adjustment Summary 

 
 

2023 Rate Adjustment Details 

Collector Operations 
Collector Operations compensates MSS for labor, benefits, general and administrative, depreciation and 
lease, maintenance, fuel and oil. Per Exhibit B, compensation for Collector Operations is adjusted using 

2021 2023
Dollar 

Change
Percentage 

Change
Adjustment 

to Rates

Collector Operations 2,226,457 2,324,968 98,511 4.42% 3.08%

Garbage Landfilling and Organics 
Processing

358,145 373,248 15,103 4.22% 0.47%

State Compliance Database 
Subscription

1,029 1,123 94 9.09% 0.00%

SB 1383 Compliance 25,404 25,102 (301) -1.19% -0.01%

Profit Calculation 274,087 285,991 11,904 4.34% 0.37%

Recyclable Materials Processing 40,861 25,337 (15,524) -37.99% -0.49%

Interest 50,632 52,873 2,241 4.43% 0.07%

Zero Waste Marin Fees 50,123 50,753 630 1.26% 0.02%

Franchise Fees 159,791 165,553 5,762 3.61% 0.18%

Annual Rate Revenue 
Reconciliation

82,044 82,044 100.00% 2.57%

Recycling Property Insurance 6,352 9,055 2,703 42.55% 0.08%

SB 1383 Negotiations and 
Implementation Support

2,935 (2,935) (5,870) -200.00% -0.18%

Total Annual Rate Revenue 
Requirement

3,195,816 3,393,112 197,296 6.17% 6.17%

58



 

LGVSD | Review of MSS’s 2023 Rate Application        Page 2 of 4 

the CPI index for Water and Sewer and Trash Collection. R3 used publicly available Bureau of Labor 
Statistics data to verify the calculated increase of 4.42% to Collector Operations. The result is $2,324,968 
in Collector Operations for the District in 2023, which is an increase of $98,511 compared to 2022.  

Garbage and Organics Tipping Fees 
Garbage Landfilling and Organics Processing tipping fee projections are calculated using actual tonnages 
collected from January 1 through June 30, 2022, which are then annualized to project total 2022 
tonnages. Those tonnages are then multiplied by the projected 2022 tipping fees calculated in 
accordance with Exhibit B. This is based on the actual per ton tipping fees for each waste stream 
category, or if unavailable, projected tipping fees are calculated using the current year per ton tipping fees 
escalated by the change in WST— subject to a minimum increase of 2.5% and a maximum increase of 
5.0%.  
 
R3 reviewed MSS’s projected 2022 tons and the 2023 per ton tipping fees for residential garbage, 
residential green waste/organics, commercial garbage, commercial mixed waste for processing, 
commercial food scraps, and MSS-served Agencies’ waste delivered to MSS. Per Exhibit B, R3 confirmed 
that MSS materially correctly projected tons by category using annualized actual tons for the first six 
months of the current rate year and, as actual tipping fees are unavailable, applied the 4.42% WST 
adjustment to project 2023 per ton tip fees. The result is $373,248 in Garbage and Organics Tipping fees 
for the District in 2023, which is an increase of $15,103 compared to 2022.  

Database Subscription for Compliance with State Law 
The rate setting methodology allows for the recovery of additional revenues associated with costs for 
changes in law and/or new State mandates. For increased operating expenses due to State Laws, 
including AB 1826 and SB 1383, MSS has included in its rate application a line item for a compliance 
database. This item was added and approved in MSS’s 2020 and 2021 Rate Adjustment applications for 
MSS’s subscription to Recyclist, which is a valuable reporting tool related to compliance with State Law. 
MSS expects this line item will continue to be present in future rate applications. The result is an increase 
of $94 in Database Subscription for the District in 2023, for a total cost of $1,123 in 2023 compared to 
$1,029 in 2022.  

Compliance with SB 1383 
MSS is requesting continued revenue in association with SB 1383 with the goal of increasing compliance 
with the State of California’s organics state mandate(s). The company will continue to provide compliance 
monitoring and inspection services, contamination monitoring, outreach and education, and reporting 
functions on behalf of the District. The total 2023 revenue recovery for these new SB 1383 compliance 
measures for MSS is $25,102 or a decrease of $301. 

Profit Calculation 
R3 reviewed the calculation of MSS’s profit, which is a function of total allowable operating expenses 
($2,724,441 for the District) divided by the contractually set operating ratio of 90.5% and subtracting the 
same sum, rounded to the nearest dollar. MSS’s actual profit achievement will vary depending on the 
company’s real revenues and expenses; as such, profit is not guaranteed. The result is $285,991 in 
Calculated Profit for the District in 2023, which is an increase of $11,904 compared to 2022. The increase 
is due to a net increase in allowable operating expenses, which were described in the previous sections 
of this report.  

Recyclable Materials Processing 
A net recyclable materials processing cost is calculated each year to share the risks and rewards of 
changing recycling markets between rate payers and MSS. Per Exhibit B, the Recyclable Materials 
Processing cost is escalated by the annual change in the WST and that amount is then divided by the 
number of all tons of recyclable materials processed at Marin Recycling Center from July 1 of the prior 
rate year through June 30 of the current rate year.  

59



 

LGVSD | Review of MSS’s 2023 Rate Application        Page 3 of 4 

The recyclable materials revenue amount is calculated based on 90% of the total revenue received by the 
Marin Recycling Center for recyclable materials, which is then divided by the number recyclable material 
tons processed at Marin Recycling Center. The calculation does not include income or tons from 
recyclable materials processed for third parties or agencies that were not customers of MSS or the Marin 
Recycling Center as of December 31, 2018. For Rate Year 2023, the resulting Net Recyclable Materials 
Processing Cost Per Ton is $18.72, a decrease of $10.87 from the 2022 value of $29.59. This reduction 
is due to increases in the value of recyclable commodities sold by MSS. The result is $25,337 in 
Recyclable Materials Processing costs for the District in 2023, which is a decrease of $15,524 compared 
to 2022.  

Interest 
Interest is based on MSS’s actual interest from its loan amortization schedules for actual and projected 
capital expenditures for services under the Agreement as of the last base year review in 2019. This is 
increased in the same manner as Collector Operations, as described above, via WST annually.  
The result is $52,873 in interest for the District in 2023, which is an increase of $2,241 compared to 2022. 

Zero Waste Marin Fees 
Zero Waste Marin Fees are set as a pass through as government fees and, per Exhibit B to the 
agreements, changes in such fees result in appropriate adjustments to rates to compensate MSS for 
increases or decreases in such fees. Zero Waste Marin fees included in the annual indexed rate 
applications for the MSS service area are set to be equal to the current Zero Waste Marin Fee 
assessments for the current fiscal year, with 100% of the MSS hauler fees passed through to the MSS 
Agencies, and with none of the MSS Transfer Station fees passed through to the MSS Agencies. The 
result is $50,753 in Zero Waste Marin Fees for the District in 2023, which is an increase of $630 to 2022. 

Franchise Fees 
Franchise Fees are calculated by multiplying the applicable franchise fee percentage by each agency 
served by MSS by the revenues projected for each that Rate Year. The District’s Franchise Fee is 5% of 
gross revenues. The result is $165,553 in Franchise Fees for the District in 2023, which is an increase of 
$5,762 compared to 2022, and is due to an overall increase in the rate revenue requirement.  

Annual Rate Revenue Reconciliation 
The Rate Revenue Reconciliation item is to reconcile the projected rate revenue from the 2021 rate 
adjustment to the actual revenue collected through rates charged during the 2021 rate year.  
Due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, MSS experienced a shortfall of $82,044 in 2021 billed 
revenues in the District compared to the 2021 revenue requirement. That amount is therefore included in 
the 2023 revenue requirement.  

Recycling Property Insurance 
Property insurance for recycling processing facilities have gone up across the country for circumstances 
outside of MSS’s control. MSS has previously and separately briefed the Agencies on this item, and R3 is 
aware of the market circumstances surrounding it. R3 finds that this extraordinary item is supported and 
reasonable. The result is $9,055 in Recycling Property Insurance for the District in 2023, which is an 
increase of $2,703 compared to 2022.  

Funding for SB 1383 Contract Negotiations and Implementation 
The MSS served Agencies have contracted with R3 to provide support for negotiation of an amendment 
to the MSS franchise agreements with the Agencies, effectuating the new services, terms and conditions 
for SB 1383 compliance. That contract also includes a contingency for support to the Agencies in 
implementing SB 1383 in 2022. R3’s expenses for that work were budgeted at $44,380 but then 
determined that services were not needed.  
 

60



 

LGVSD | Review of MSS’s 2023 Rate Application        Page 4 of 4 

For 2023 the total $44,380 in budged costs were deducted from the rate application as services were 
deemed unnecessary, providing a full refund to the rate payers.  The District’s portion of the refund totaled 
$2,935 and is represented in the 2023 rate request. 

Survey of Comparable Rates 

Figure 1 illustrates R3's survey of solid waste rates as of October 2022 for agencies located throughout 
the Marin County. These survey results are presented as an indication of the reasonableness of the 
resulting rates for 2023. For comparison purposes, agencies serviced by Marin Sanitary Services (MSS) 
are designated in green and represent the proposed pricing for 32-gallon cart, including the current rate 
increase. Other, non-MSS service agencies are designated in blue and are current pricing, though price 
increases are expected for 2023 as well. The average cost for the 30–35-gallon cart for non-MSS service 
agencies is represented by the grey line is $52.86. For the residents of the LGVSD, the 32-gallon cart is 
projected to cost $43.93 per month. 
 

Figure 1: Comparison of MSS’s 2023 Rates to Other Marin County Agencies 

 

 
The District’s ’s commercial rates for a 3-cubic yard bin serviced one time per week will be $636.43 
compared to $599.42 the previous year. 

61



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

ORDINANCE NO. 190 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1, AN ORDINANCE REGULATING SOLID 
WASTE, RECYCLABLE AND ORGANIC MATERIALS, AND THE COLLECTION, 

REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL THEREOF, TITLE 4 – GARBAGE SERVICE, AS 
AMENDED, OF THE ORDINANCE CODE OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY 

SANITARY DISTRICT. 

The Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, 
does ordain as follows: 

Appendix A of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Ordinance Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

ATTACHMENT B 

62



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

EXHIBIT C ‐ SCHEDULE OF RATES

RESIDENTIAL REFUSE COLLECTION RATES
Rate increase: 6.17%
Effective date: 01/01/2023

Weekly Service Rates (Billed Quarterly)

Monthly Rate  Quarterly Rate

20 gallon cart $37.35 $112.05
32 gallon cart $43.93 $131.79
64 gallon cart $87.86 $263.58
96 gallon cart $131.79 $395.37
Low income ‐ 20 gal* cart $29.88 $89.64
Low income ‐ 32 gal* cart $35.14 $105.42
Low income ‐ 64 gal* cart $70.29 $210.87
Low income ‐ 96 gal* cart $105.43 $316.29
Additional Organics Cart Rental  $2.59 $7.77
(35 or 64 gallon cart)

Additional Split Cart Rental $2.59 $7.77
(64 or 96 gallon cart)

Additional Monthly Charges Monthly Fee Quarterly Fee

 (per cart, each way)

Distance 5' ‐ 50' $6.03 $18.09
Distance Over 50' $7.76 $23.28

Additional Service Fees per Occurrence Fee 

Return Fees ‐ Off day $25.00

Return Fees ‐ Same day $10.00

Resume Service/Late Fee $35.00

Contamination (cart) any size cart $30.00

Overload/Overweight (cart) $25.00

Extra bag garbage $15.00

Extra bag yard waste $10.00

Steam Clean (cart) $15.00

Special Collection $35.00

Special Handling (Bulky items) $30.00

Bulky item fees per item Fees Vary

Cart Strap Set‐up Admin Fee $25.00 

20 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $55.00 

32 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $60.00 

64 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $65.00 

96 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $75.00 

64 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $90.00 

96 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $100.00 

*Must meet PG&E CARE program eligibility requirements.

O
N
E 
TI
M
E 
SE
R
V
IC
E 
FE
ES

R
EO

C
C
U
R
IN
G
 C
H
A
R
G
ES

Residential Service (Bundled service includes 1 landfill (garbage) cart, 1 organics cart, & 1 recycling split cart )

2022 Flat rate

NOTE: We may not be able to accommodate any collection requests NOT at the curb due to a variety of factors including safety, accessibility, and

efficiency. Requests to be assessed and approved by Route Manager.

63



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

EXHIBIT C ‐ SCHEDULE OF RATES

COMMERCIAL REFUSE COLLECTION RATES
Rate increase: 6.17%

Effective date: 01/01/2023

COMMERCIAL CARTS, BINS, ROLL‐OFFS 

Garbage 1 2 3 4 5 6

20 gallon cart* $38.20 $76.40 $114.60 $152.80 $191.00 $229.20 $8.82

32 gallon cart $44.93 $89.86 $134.79 $179.72 $224.65 $269.58 $10.37

64 gallon cart $89.86 $179.72 $269.58 $359.44 $449.30 $539.16 $20.74

96 gallon cart $134.79 $269.58 $404.37 $539.16 $673.95 $808.74 $31.11

1 yard bin $314.53 $629.83 $944.37 $1,258.90 $1,574.12 $1,888.58 $72.58

2 yard bin $475.48 $918.08 $1,360.35 $1,802.55 $2,245.16 $2,687.38 $109.73

3 yard bin $636.43 $1,206.32 $1,776.30 $2,346.21 $2,916.17 $3,486.15 $146.87

4 yard bin $840.30 $1,647.28 $2,454.44 $3,261.34 $4,068.35 $4,875.61 $193.92

5 yard bin $1,044.19 $2,088.26 $3,132.59 $4,176.49 $5,220.55 $6,265.12 $240.97

6 yard bin $1,209.21 $2,292.03 $3,374.97 $4,457.79 $5,540.74 $6,623.68 $279.05

10 yard roll‐off $1,921.15 $3,642.95 $5,364.35 $7,085.92 $8,807.85 $10,529.36 $443.34

18 yard roll‐off $3,152.83 $5,907.93 $8,662.93 $11,418.08 $14,173.39 $16,928.40 $727.58

20 yard roll‐off $3,842.29 $7,285.88 $10,728.69 $14,171.85 $17,615.69 $21,058.71 $886.68

25 yard roll‐off $4,802.88 $9,107.37 $13,410.86 $17,714.81 $22,019.62 $26,323.40 $1,108.36

Organics (F2E or Compost) 1 2 3 4 5 6
Additional One 

Time Empty

32 gallon $21.22 $42.44 $63.66 $84.88 $106.10 $127.32 $4.90

64 gallon $42.44 $84.88 $127.32 $169.76 $212.20 $254.64 $9.79

1 yard $148.50 $297.00 $445.50 $594.00 $742.50 $891.00 $34.27

2 yard $297.00 $594.00 $891.00 $1,188.00 $1,485.00 $1,782.00 $68.54

3 yard  $445.50 $891.00 $1,336.50 $1,782.00 $2,227.50 $2,673.00 $102.81

10 yard roll‐off $1,344.81 $2,689.62 $4,034.43 $5,379.24 $6,724.05 $8,068.86 $310.34

18 yard roll‐off $2,420.66 $4,841.32 $7,261.98 $9,682.64 $12,103.30 $14,523.96 $558.61

20 yard roll‐off $2,689.62 $5,379.24 $8,068.86 $10,758.48 $13,448.10 $16,137.72 $620.68

25 yard roll‐off $3,362.03 $6,724.06 $10,086.09 $13,448.12 $16,810.15 $20,172.18 $775.85

Garbage Compactors (Per empty)

Roll‐off Compactor Tipping fee per ton  $152.47 Roll‐off Compactor Hauling charge  $309.69

Stationary FL (Per Compacted Yard) $129.15 Roll‐off Compactor  Special handling  Rates Vary 

Service Fee Details

Lock  $25.00 Monthly fee

Box rental Fees Vary Minimum Bimonthly fee

Distance < 50ft $6.03 Monthly fee per cart, each way

Distance > 50ft $7.74 Monthly fee per cart, each way

Commercial Service Fees  Fee 

Return Fee ‐ BIN $75.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐same day $10.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐off day $25.00 

Late Fee/Resume Service Fee $35.00 

Contamination (BIN) $50.00 

Contamination (CART) $30.00 

Overload/Compaction (BIN) $60.00 

Overload/Compaction (CART) $25.00 

Extra Bag Garbage $15.00 

Additional Empty BIN Fees vary

Extra Bag Yard Waste $15.00 

Steam Clean (1‐6 yard BIN) $95.00 

Steam Clean (CART) $15.00 

Steam Clean (COMPACTOR/ROLL‐OFF) $225.00 

Lock Set‐up Admin Fee $25.00 

Lock Single Use Fee $5.00 

Lock Purchase Fee $20.00 

Lock Bar Bin Set‐up Fee $75.00 

Overweight Charge Per Ton* $205.00

20 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $55.00 
32 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $60.00 
64 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $65.00 
96 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $75.00 
64 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $90.00 
96 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $100.00 
Bin Repair/Replacement Fee** Fees vary
*Boxes exceeding 300lbs/yard

**Fees vary by size up to $1,200, not to exceed current replacement value.

Additional One 

Time Empty

Other Charges 

* Customers must have a sufficient level of service for the volume of material generated. Requests for 20gal carts require assessment and approval of a Route Manager.

NOTE: All container types and sizes may not be available at all locations depending on a variety of factors including safety, accessibility, 

and efficiency. Requests to be assessed and approved by Route Manager.

O
N
E 
TI
M
E 
SE
R
V
IC
E 
FE
ES

R
EO

C
C
U
R
IN
G
 C
H
A
R
G
ES

Collections per Week

64



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

EXHIBIT C ‐ SCHEDULE OF RATES

MULTI‐FAMILY DWELLING REFUSE COLLECTION RATES

Rate increase: 6.17%

Effective date: 01/01/2023

MFD CARTS, BINS, ROLL‐OFFS

Garbage 1 2 3 4 5 6

20 gallon cart* $37.34 $74.68 $112.02 $149.36 $186.70 $224.04 $8.62

32 gallon cart $43.93 $87.86 $131.79 $175.72 $219.65 $263.58 $10.14

64 gallon cart $87.86 $175.72 $263.58 $351.44 $439.30 $527.16 $20.28

96 gallon cart $131.79 $263.58 $395.37 $527.16 $658.95 $790.74 $30.41

1 yard bin $290.50 $503.29 $716.01 $928.79 $1,141.57 $1,354.38 $67.04

2 yard bin $475.48 $918.08 $1,360.35 $1,802.55 $2,245.16 $2,687.38 $109.73

3 yard bin $636.43 $1,206.32 $1,776.30 $2,346.21 $2,916.10 $3,485.99 $146.87

4 yard bin $840.30 $1,647.28 $2,454.44 $3,261.34 $4,068.35 $4,875.61 $193.92

5 yard bin $1,044.19 $2,088.26 $3,132.59 $4,176.49 $5,220.55 $6,265.12 $240.97

6 yard bin $1,209.21 $2,292.03 $3,374.97 $4,457.79 $5,540.74 $6,623.68 $279.05

10 yard roll‐off $1,921.15 $3,642.95 $5,364.35 $7,085.92 $8,807.85 $10,529.36 $443.34

18 yard roll‐off $3,152.83 $5,907.93 $8,662.93 $11,418.08 $14,173.39 $16,928.40 $727.58

20 yard roll‐off $3,842.29 $7,285.88 $10,728.69 $14,171.85 $17,615.69 $21,058.71 $886.68

25 yard roll‐off $4,802.88 $9,107.37 $13,410.86 $17,714.81 $22,019.62 $26,323.40 $1,108.36

Organics  1 2 3 4 5 6
Additional One 

Time Empty

Additional Organics Cart Rental $2.59 $5.18 $7.77 $10.36 $12.95 $15.54 NA

(35  gallon cart) after 4 TOTAL carts per cart per 

month

Additional Organics Cart Rental $2.59 $5.18 $7.77 $10.36 $12.95 $15.54 NA

(64 gallon cart) after 4 TOTAL carts per cart per 

month.

1 yard $148.50 $297.00 $445.50 $594.00 $742.50 $891.00 $34.27

2 yard $297.00 $594.00 $891.00 $1,188.00 $1,485.00 $1,782.00 $68.54

3 yard  $445.50 $891.00 $1,336.50 $1,782.00 $2,227.50 $2,673.00 $102.81

Garbage Compactors (Per empty)

Roll‐off Compactor Tipping fee per ton  $152.47 Roll‐off Compactor Hauling charge  $309.69

Stationary FL (Per Compacted Yard) $129.15 Roll‐off Compactor  Special handling  Rates Vary 

Service Fee Details

Lock  $25.00 Monthly fee

Box rental Fees Vary Minimum Bimonthly fee

Distance < 50ft $6.03 Monthly fee per cart, each way

Distance > 50ft $7.74 Monthly fee per cart, each way

MFD One Time Service Fees  Fee 

Return Fee ‐ BIN $75.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐same day $10.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐off day $25.00

Late Fee/Resume Service Fee $35.00 

Contamination (BIN) Per Yard $50.00 

Contamination (CART) $30.00 

Overload/Compaction (BIN) $60.00 

Overload/Compaction (CART) $25.00 

Additonal Empty Bag $15.00 

Extra Bag Yard Waste $10.00 

Additional Empty Garbage Fees vary

Steam Clean (BIN) $95.00 

Steam Clean (CART) $15.00 

Steam Clean (COMPACTOR/ROLL‐OFF) $225.00 

Lock Set‐up Admin Fee $25.00 

Lock Single Use Fee $5.00 

Lock Purchase Fee $20.00 

Lock Bar Bin Set‐up Fee $75.00 

Overweight Charge Per Ton* $205.00

20 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $55.00 

32 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $60.00 

64 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $65.00 

96 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $75.00 

64 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $90.00 

96 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $100.00 

Bin Repair/Replacement Fee**
Fees vary by 

size up to 

$*Boxes exceeding 300lbs/yard

**Fees vary by size not to exceed current replacement value.

NOTE: All container types and sizes may not be available depending on a variety of factors including safety, accessibility, and efficiency. Requests to be assessed and approved by 

Route Manager.

NOTE: Minimum service level is 32 gallons per unit or equivalent volume. Decrease to 20 gallon per unit is subject to company review and approval.

NOTE: Up to four (4) Organics carts provided at no additional charge.  Additional carts may be rented for a nominal monthly fee. 

R
E

O
C

C
U

R
IN

G
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

Collections per Week
Additional One 

Time Empty

Other Charges 

O
N

E
 T

IM
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 F
E

E
S

65



All other ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

* * * * * * * * * * 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is full, true, and correct copy of the Ordinance duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
of Marin County, California, at a meeting hereof held on December 15, 2022, by the following 
vote of members thereof: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 
Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

APPROVED: 

Crystal Yezman, Vice President 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

(seal) 

66



 

 
 

 

12/15/2022 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2022 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee , 2022 Legal Services Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2022 HR Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, Marin Special Districts Association, 2022 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2022 
Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee, 2022 HR Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2022 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2022 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee,  Other Reports – NextDoor webinar 
  

YEZMAN 
Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2022 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Legal Services Ad Hoc Committee, 2022 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2022 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee 
Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 7A 
                                                                                 DATE: DECEMBER 15, 2022             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

76



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2022\Agenda Packets 2022\12152022\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

12/15/2022 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 7B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104


	Agenda 12152022
	1 Public Comment
	2A Board Minutes 12022022
	2B Draft Warrant List 12152022
	2C Board Compensation November 2022
	2D Yezman CASA Meeting attendance request
	2E ArcSine Engineering Amendment 1
	ASR for SCADA Support Services Amendment for FY 2022-23 Contract
	On Call Support  2022 - 2023 Amendment 1

	2F Resolution 2022-2292 Remote Meetings
	2G Resolution 2022-2293 Board Policy F-130
	3.1 General Manager's Report
	3.2 Board Policies B-150 and O-10
	3.3 GFOA Certificate of Achievement in FInancial Reporting
	4 Audit Presentation with Financial Statements
	5 Public Hearing for Garbage and Refuse Rate for 2023
	ASR Garbage Rate 2023 Ord and Hearing
	Attachment A R3 MSS 2023 Rate App Review - LGVSD
	SUBJECT: Final Report – Review of Marin Sanitary Service’s 2023 Rate Application
	Executive Summary
	2023 Rate Adjustment Details
	Collector Operations
	Garbage and Organics Tipping Fees
	Database Subscription for Compliance with State Law
	Compliance with SB 1383
	Profit Calculation
	Recyclable Materials Processing
	Interest
	Zero Waste Marin Fees
	Franchise Fees
	Annual Rate Revenue Reconciliation
	Recycling Property Insurance
	Funding for SB 1383 Contract Negotiations and Implementation

	Survey of Comparable Rates

	Attachment B Ordinance 190 Garbage Rate Adjustment 2023
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE


	6 Board Member Reports
	6.3 Murray Other Reports
	7A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	7B Board Agenda Item Requests
	8 Various Industry Articles



